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. DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL {IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The United Church of Chelsea is located at the east end of one of two adjacent
greens in the village of Chelsea.

The clapboarded building of post and beam construction rises two stories from

a granite block foundation, exposed at the front (west) where the ground gently
slopes downward. The shallow pitched pedimented gabled roof is sheathed with
asphalt shingles,

On the front (west) gable elevation a pedimented central entrance pavilion pro-
jects approximately 3 feet from the main block. On the first story, paneled,
double door, flanked by four-pane sidelights are recessed behind two fluted
wooden columns "in antis', which in turn are flanked by plain wooden pilasters
supporting a simple entablature with a three-part architrave. Above are three
large, rectangular windows with stained glass. Paneled corner pilasters rise
the full height of the building to a wide entablature beneath the clapboarded
pediment.

Rising from the roof of the entrance pavilion, and in front of the gable end of
the main block is a three-stage steeple. The bottom stage is square in plan,
clapboarded, with a simple modillion cornice and topped with a low balustrade.
On the front (west) face is a gravity-powered clock. The belfry above is
octagonal in plan with rectangular louvered openings on the west, north, east
and south faces, alternating with recessed panels. The church bell was cast

in East Medway, Massachusetts in 1840. Above each is a semi-circular wooden
drip molding with a keystone. There are guttae under the narrow boxed cornice.
The belfry is surmounted by an octagonal, louvered cupcla with an octagonal,
wood-shingled bellcast roof topped by an ornate weathervane.

On either side of the entrance pavilion are 8/8 windows with shutters on the
first story and 2/2? lozenge~patterned, acid-etched windows in the second story.
On the side elevations are four 8/8 windows with shutters on the first story
and four large, rectangular windows with stained glass in the second story in
axis with the first story windows.

Paneled corner pilasters rise full height to an entablature continuous with that
on the entrance pavilion, but which ends at the two rear (northeast and south-
east) corners., At the rear (eastd is a projecting 2-story wing with a gabled
roof with partial returns, which houses the apse. Corner pilasters rise to an
entablature identical to that of the main block. On the first story is a

simple doorway; on the second story is a large, rectangular window with

stained glass similar to those on the side elevation of the main block. All
windows have wooden sills and simple, peaked lintels.
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The interior of the church was altered in 1848 when a three~sided gallery was
removed and the building was made into two stories. The first story contains
function rooms while the church sanctuary is located in the upper story. 1In
the sanctuary, windows are capped with pointed arched moldings, and three,
3-part pointed-arched openings at the apse end contain the organ, the altar,
and an entrance to a rear chamber. Pointed-arched moldings are on the end of
each pews The ceiling is sheathed with pressed metal and a large Victorian
chandelier is suspended at the center,
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The United Church of Chelsea is both an outstanding structure in its own right
and an important component in the villagescape of a well-preserved Vermont hill
town. The church building dominates the village of Chelsea whilé at the same

time relates excellently to both its immediate site, the village's maple-lined

green, as well as to its larger environment, a narrow river valley surrounded

by steep, wooded hills.

Constructed as the Chelsea Congregational Church in the years 1811-1813, the
church's plan is derived from plates published in Asher Benjamin's The Archi-
tect's Companion. Notable original Federal style elements include the central
pavilion and the steeple, a fine vernacular version of Benjamin's design.

In 1848 major interior alterations were made to the church.

Although it is

undocumented, it is probable that exterior alterations in the current Greek
Revival style were made at the same time. The wide entablature, corner, pila-
sters, and entrance '"in antis'" are Greek R&vival details of particular interest.

In 1929 the Chelsea Congregational Church merged with Methodist Church to form

the United Thurch of Chelsea., The church has remained an import

villagescape for over 160 years.
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